) Earth Negotiations Bullet

A Reporting Service for Environment and Development Negotiations

Vol. 12 No. 106  Published by the International institute for Sustainable Development (11SD) Tuesday, 8 June 1999
HIGHLIGHTS FROM THE MEETINGS OF THE the US, noted the need for more consultations on arrangements for
FCCC SUBSIDIARY BODIES COP-5. JAPAN accepted most of the G-77/CHINA's suggestions,
MONDAY, 7 JUNE 1999 except on timing for the high-level segment. He emphasized COP-

The Subsidiary Body for Implementation (SBI) held a mornirfgs role in building momentum towards COP-6.
session to discuss arrangements for intergovernmental meetings, The NETHERLANDS announced its offer to host COP-6 in the
including arrangements for COP-5 and COP-6. Contact groupsHague and said it was up to Parties to decide whether it should take
were convened on: the Protocol mechanisms; Annex | communjaee in 2000 or 2001. He drew attention to significant financial
tions; non-Annex | communications; and land use, land-use chaingglications for the host country if an early decision is not taken.
and forestry. Informal consultations were held on emissions ~ The US noted its preference to hold COP-6 in 2001 in view of the
resulting from fuel used for international transport. work required to solve pending issues, including the Protocol
mechanisms, compliance procedures and LULUCF. He proposed

SBI two sessions of the subsidiary bodies to take place between COP-5
On arrangements for COP-5, SBI Rapporteur Klaus Radunsky y cop.g. AUSTRALIA said that since COP-6 had important

(Austria) reported o.n Qngoing informal consqltations on dates fcHecisions to take it should be held early in 2001. CANADA noted
COI_D'S and on the t|m|ng and nature of the high-level segment. hl'% importance of setting the technical foundation of decisions on
outlined two al.ternat|ve proposals on arrz_;\ng_ements for CQP-S es such as technology transfer, the mechanisms and compli-
noted that, while both sc_heduled thg beginning of the session foéaée. He said there should be ample opportunities for subsidiary
October 1999, one entails a Committee of the Whole (COW) WrB'S’dy discussions in 2000, which may affect the dates for COP-

the other excludes it. He said options for the high-level segmentake . 5 77/CHINA preferred scheduling COP-6 in October or

1-2 November a_md 4-5 NF"’ember- On.top|c.s for the h'gh"‘?"e' November 2000, and objected to additional intersessional meetings
segment, he S?'d two options were be'“_g dlscu.ssed. The first of the subsidiary bodies. KUWAIT and LEBANON stressed that
proposes the high-level s.egment o ac.idnessr, f”ll'& ex.p.erlences; the COPs should be held on a yearly basis. The EU expressed its
key issues; challenges Wlth. rggard to innovative, efficient and Stﬁ‘é’?dbility on the timing of COP-6 but underscored the need for a
of-the-art technologies; policies and measures; and_the Prc_)toc rompt decision to permit the Netherlands sufficient time for prep-
mechanisms, as well as ways and means of promoting their devaqjétions. Chair Kante requested John Ashe (Antigua and Barbuda)

op:jnlent. The szcon(lj propose? ‘::n e(::xchangg of V'ZWE Og the Shl%t'undertake informal consultations and report back to the SBI.
and long-term development of the Convention and the Protocol, The Executive Secretary said the Secretariat had scaled down

including the implementation of the Buenos Aires Plan of ActlonIts plans for the biennium 2000-2001, given the reaction to its

(BAPA). . budget, but added that no corresponding scaling down had occurred
The G'7,7/C,H|NA tapled a d.ra.tft d?C'S'On o.n ariang‘]‘ements f% the expectations of delegates. He indicated that conclusions
COP-5. He indicated thafiter alia: no “contentious” or “extra- emerging from the contact groups envisaging activity in the budget

neous” issues should be included in COP-5's agenda; no COW ,qi0.4 2000-2001 should include a qualifier referencing the forth-
need be formed; the high-level segment should take place fromc%rdning decision on the programme budget

November; and Ministers and heads of delegation should partici-

pate on an equal footing. He recommended that the high-level CONTACT GROUPS AND INFORMAL CONSULTATIONS
segment address the state of implementation of the BAPA and the Emissions from international transport: Jose Romero (Swit-
early entry into force of the Protocol. The EU called for dynamiczerland) conducted informal consultations on the draft conclusions
interaction among heads of delegation during the high-level  on emissions resulting from fuel used for international transporta-
segment, rather than lengthy statements. CHINA, supported bytion. Delegates called for clarity regarding what SBSTA-11 will
SAUDI ARABIA, QATAR and KUWAIT, inquired about the consider and agreed to delete a reference to SBSTA forwarding a
meaning of “long-term implementation of the Convention” as a draft decision to COP-5. They discussed extensively an informal
discussion topic and said the high-level segment should focus aeport by the Secretariat that was distributed during a SBSTA
reviewing the state of implementation of the BAPA. The EU, witlsession. Issues raised included: whether the report had or will have

This issue of th&arth Negotiations Bulleti® (enb@iisd.org) is written and edited by Paola Bettelli (pbettelli@iisd.org), Chad Carpenter (chadc@iisd.org), Valgrie Cola
(vcolas@iisd.org), Angela Churie (churie@I.kth.se), Lavanya Rajamani (lavanya.rajamani@hertford.ox.ac.uk) and Chris Spentei¢g@éotmail.com). The Editor is

Pamela Chasek, Ph.D. (pam@iisd.org) and the Managing Editor is Langston James "Kimo" Goree (kimo@iisd.org). The WWW QontisrRé&dir Dorah
(pfdoran@ecology.u-net.com). Digital engineering by Andrei Henry (ahenry@iisd.ca), David Fernau (david@virtualstockhothigfé)raaerson (janderson@iisd.da).
French translation by Mongi Gadhoum (mongi.gadoum@enb.intl.tn). Logistics coordinated by Molly Rosenman (mrosenman@iiddergh &ooney
(kcooney@uclink4.berkeley.edu). The Sustaining Donors of the Bulletin are the Netherlands Ministry of Foreign Affairs,rtiregbbweé Canada (through CIDA), the
United States (through USAID), the Swiss Agency for Environment, Forests and Landscape, and the United Kingdom Depantereatifordl Development (DFID).
General Support for the Bulletin during 1999 is provided by the German Federal Ministry of Environment (BMU) and the GeerahMFestry of Development
Cooperation (BMZ), the Danish Ministry of Foreign Affairs, the European Community (DG- XI), the Ministries of Environmemnteagid Affairs of Austria, the Ministrigs
of Foreign Affairs and Environment of Norway, the Ministry of Foreign Affairs and Ministry of Environment of Finland, thex@ewmenf Sweden, the United Natians

Development Programme (UNDP), the Global Environment Facility (GEF) and the Ministry for the Environment in Iceland. Spéitiddr this meeting has been

provided by the UNFCCC Secretariat. Budletin can be contacted by e-mail at (enb@iisd.org) and at tel: +1-212- 644-0204; fax: +1-212-644-0206. 1ISD can be contact
by e-mail at (info@iisd.ca) and at 161 Portage Avenue East, 6th Floor, Winnipeg, Manitoba R3B 0Y4, Canada. The opiniedsexp#eash Negotiations Bulletiare|
those of the authors and do not necessarily reflect the views of IISD and other funders. ExcerptsHeoth tlegotiations Bulletimay be used in non-commerdial
publications only and only with appropriate academic citation. For permission to use this material in commercial puldarattobshe Managing Editor. Electropic
versions are sent to e-mail distribution lists and can be found on the Linkages WWW server at http://www.iisd.ca/linkagesllitEimage by The Living Earth, Inc.| at
http://www.livingearth.com. For information on tB&IB, send e-mail to (enb@iisd.org).




Earth Negotiations Bulletin
Tuesday, 8 June 1999 Vol. 12 No. 106 Page 2

the status of a technical report; what decision initiated it; and hofinancial mechanism. She questioned the IPCC'’s capacity to gather
to proceed with its review and revision. They also considered country-specific information. The US said it supported many of the
including a chapeau outlining the decisions calling for further  points in the EU’s text, particularly on the usefulness of technical
work, and including language noting that the Convention is the feedback and the need to develop guidelines for second national
framework under which action will be taken. Chair Romero will reemmunications. TOGO noted that it was premature to think about
draft the relevant paragraphs and circulate a revised draft. guidelines for second communications as most non-Annex | coun-
Joint contact group on mechanismsThe G-77/CHINA tries were still preparing their first. MEXICO said financial support
requested more time to formulate its position. He said the grougshould be available not only for vulnerability assessment but also
was focusing on the clean development mechanism (CDM) andfor mitigation and adaptation efforts. SWITZERLAND empha-
that the three mechanisms should be addressed in sequence, asizgghthe need to identify problems with the preparation of invento-
are different in nature and scope. He noted that the synthesis offies. The group decided to invite the IPCC Inventory Task Force to
proposals does not reflect the idea that principles be addressed ditgg.a brief presentation on its work and continue discussing the
NORWAY, on behalf of the Umbrella Group (a fluid grouping of proposed draft decisions at the next session.
non-EU Annex | countries), expressed regret that G-77/China was LULUCF: The LULUCF contact group met in the afternoon to
not prepared. He said the BAPA had requested SBSTA to considensider draft conclusions that contained a compilation of addi-
all three mechanisms and prioritize the CDM. Supported by thetional proposals by Parties based on ideas emerging from the
EU, he suggested starting with discussions on the CDM but alsgroup’s earlier discussions. Participants agreed to wording for
allocating time to consider the other mechanisms. The EU stategaragraphs thaiter alia: invites Parties to review questions in the
that although the mechanisms may be distinct, a number of sSimB8STA document on LULUCF methodological issues and
issues exist. After consultations with representatives of the regigeguests them to provide submissions on these topics, where
groups, Chair Chow adjourned the meeting until Tuesday mornipgssible electronically, for consideration at SBSTA-11; and further
Annex | Communications: The contact group on Annex |  considers, at SBSTA-11, the process and timing for the analysis of
communications convened in afternoon and evening sessions tformation provided by the IPCC Special Report on LULUCF and
consider the following documents: the draft decision on guideliriée process of developing the work programme. The group had not
and the schedule for Annex | communications; draft SBSTA anccompleted its work by the meeting’s scheduled conclusion, and
SBI conclusions on Annex | communications guidelines; draft elected to continue deliberations into the night.
?wdeltlngs',q('):n inventories; and notes on the common reporting IN THE CORRIDORS
ormat ( ) With a plea for prayers for the G-77/China negotiators

rosegicr:demtgetdhz gL?::;%?g;gzgnﬂfr?:;n?:;::i the;;hzdmeat{t‘gmpting to agree on an internal position on the Protocol mecha-
grotp P o ttg i nisms, the joint contact group on mechanisms was adjourned yet
preambular sentence proposed by Switzerland noting the ongoing_. . .
rocess of improvement in reporting guidance to Parties articfji ain by Chair Chow. The repeated adjournments prompted one
b P P 99 P observer to speculate that the “G” in G-77 should come to signify

larly through the IPCC'’s work on uncertainties and good practicequs"lodot » as in “Waiting for Godot.” Some reported that the G-77/

gfnlglg?fl:ve%oene;; ans(;d;;e If:d::z(i:;:;g; (?r?;tu:fl t;;vggclh'na is experiencing difficulty with the “nature and scope” of the
y reporting. group P % itself, including what it constitutes, whether certified emis-

and SBI conclusions on guidelines for Annex | communications. . . . Y .
- . . ___sion reductions should be “tradeable” and whether a portion of
On the draft guidelines on inventories, the group concluded its

. . . o project proceeds should go towards an “adaptation” fund. Some
discussion after accepting several amendments, includteg,

o i . - B . __participants suggested that with few opportunities to meet interses-
alia: deleting a paragraph with def|n|t|gns of the terms _shall angonally and an unwillingness to dissolve into regional positions,
“should;” and inserting a sentence noting that the CRF is part ofrrbe . . . .

) . . . . the G-77/China might be unable to agree on a comprehensive posi-
national inventory report. In its evening session, the group acce[gitgr(]jin time for serious discussion at this meeting. Some suggested
the notes on the CRF as amended. |

L . thatthe Secretariat could help by playing a more “facilitative role”
.Non-Annex I Communlgatlons:Thg non-Armex | communi- in promoting intersessional dialogue between Parties within the G-
cations contact group met in an evening session and exchangegd;cpina against the backdrop of heated budget discussions and
preliminary views on a draft decision submitted by the EU. The Lﬁy_e fiscal discipline being demanded of the Secretariat, this may

Sa"_j the intent of the decisionis to improve the quality of COMMUPE|| pe a tall order, leaving some observers wondering at the best
cations and address some of the constraints faced by non-Ann%e{y forward

countries. He underlined learning from experiences gained while
preparing initial communications and making progress towards
guidelines for non-Annex | second communications as the EU’s . THINGS TO LOOK '.:OR TODAY ,
. I Joint contact group on mechanismsThis group will meet at
main concerns. He highlighted the usefulness of open, transparent )
. . 10:00 am in the Beethoven Room.
and non-confrontational technical assessment of non-Annex | . ) . _ _
communications. He indicated that the IPCC Inventory Task Forc_e‘Jo'nt Worklng Group on compliance: The JWG will meet at
could be requested to develop a work plan to prepare a compreﬁéw- pm in the Beethoven Room.
sive database on regional emission factors. The G-77/CHINA
pointed to inconsistencies between the draft decision and previous
COP decisions on providing guidance to the operating entity of the



